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          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning.  I

          3  am Council Member Leroy Comrie, Chairman to Consumer

          4  Affairs Committee.

          5                 Before we begin, I want to thank my

          6  staff for all of their work on Intro. 243-A, Thomas

          7  Ferrugia, the Legislative Counsel, Veronica McNeil

          8  the Financial Analyst and welcoming to the staff

          9  Brian Sogol the Legislative Policy Analyst.

         10                 Today we are going to continue our

         11  review of Proposed Introductory Bill 243-A of 2006,

         12  formerly Introductory Bill 708 of 2005, a local law

         13  to amend the Administrative Code in relation to

         14  reducing no-fault motor vehicle insurance fraud.

         15  Along with my colleagues I would like to thank the

         16  witnesses and audience members for their attendance

         17  at today's proceedings.

         18                 Intro. 243-A aims to lower auto

         19  insurance premium by addressing no-fault insurance

         20  fraud in New York City.  State law mandates that all

         21  automobile owners who are insured in New York pay

         22  into the state's no-fault fund.  The system was

         23  originally intended to simplify the claims process

         24  and reduce overall premiums because regardless of

         25  fault claims of up to $50 thousand are immediately
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          2  paid for medical treatment on injuries sustained in

          3  auto collisions.

          4                 Despite the legislators intentions

          5  automobile insurance rates have increased,

          6  particularly in New York City since the plan went

          7  into effect in the mid '70s. Fraud is considered one

          8  of the main causes.  The most problematic no-fault

          9  fraud involves the scheme where a medical clinic is

         10  established solely for the purpose of overbilling

         11  insurance providers.  Unlike legitimate medical

         12  practices, these fraudulent medical clinics often

         13  have insufficient equipment and personnel to support

         14  the treatments they claim to offer.

         15                 In addition, many of the billed

         16  services are unnecessary or perhaps worse, never

         17  actually performed.

         18                 Intro. 243-A attempts to combat

         19  no-fault automobile insurance fraud in New York City

         20  by restricting the employment of "runners",

         21  individuals hired by fraudulent medical clinics to

         22  recruit claimants.  It also creates a reporting

         23  system to determine the medical clinics that process

         24  a high volume of no-fault insurance claims.  Such

         25  reporting requirements would likely draw specific
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          2  attention to those clinics most likely involved in

          3  fraudulent activity.

          4                 At this point I would like to just

          5  acknowledge and recognize Council Member David

          6  Yassky, who brought this issue of deceptive medical

          7  billing to the Councils attention and he is the

          8  prime sponsor of Introductory Bill No. 243-A.

          9                 Before I have him speak I would like

         10  to acknowledge that we have been joined by Council

         11  Member Charles Barron from Brooklyn and Council

         12  Member John Liu from Queens.  Would Council Member

         13  Yassky like to take a moment to speak on the bill?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Well, thank

         15  you very much Chair Comrie.  Since I am not a member

         16  of the Committee, I very much appreciate your

         17  indulging me here.

         18                 I am eager to hear from the witnesses

         19  so I will not speak at length about this bill.

         20  First of all I just want to thank a couple of people

         21  for their work, as you have done.  First of course

         22  our colleague Charles Barron with whom I began

         23  working on this issue a couple of years ago and who

         24  was a prime co- sponsor of this bill when it was

         25  first introduced and again this year.
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          2                 I also want to recognize, although he

          3  is not here, our Borough President Marty Markowitz

          4  who really I think deserves the credit for putting

          5  this issue in the forefront of public attention.  He

          6  did a report some time ago now on the causes of the

          7  extraordinarily high car insurance rates that New

          8  Yorkers pay and particularly Brooklynites, all New

          9  Yorkers, Queensites included, but Brooklyn is

         10  particularly high. He identified this practice of

         11  really ripping off the no- fault system as one of

         12  the prime causes and so this bill is really just an

         13  effort to put his ideas into practice here.

         14                 I also know we're going to hear from

         15  witnesses representing both insurers and the trial

         16  lawyers who act on behalf of accident victims.  And

         17  I just wanted to say I think this bill has really

         18  been a model of participation by the interested

         19  civic leadership.  The participation of both the

         20  insurers and the lawyers, who really are quite

         21  knowledgeable about this topic, I think results in a

         22  much better bill than the one we started out with.

         23  So I just wanted to acknowledge that before even

         24  they testified.

         25                 Thank you Chair Comrie and I look
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          2  forward very much to this Hearing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you. We

          4  have been joined by Council Member Oliver Koppell

          5  from the Bronx.  Good morning. Council Member

          6  Charles Barron has asked for permission to vote

          7  because he has an Immigration Hearing on another

          8  bill that he has been working on.  So with that then

          9  since he was an early co sponsor of the original

         10  bill, Council Member Barron.  Can we record his vote

         11  at this particular time?

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I'll call Billy

         13  Martin and find out.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Well we can

         15  record it for the record and tell Billy when he gets

         16  here.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         18  much Mr. Chair.  I just wanted to also say that I

         19  want to commend the Council Member Yassky for this

         20  bill.  I think it's timely, I think it's very

         21  beneficial to our district and certainly will put

         22  the good check on making sure that the medical

         23  providers will definitely be monitored properly when

         24  it comes to no- fault insurance.   I just wanted to

         25  thank him for that and I wanted to vote aye on this
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          2  bill.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you Council

          4  Member.  At this time we have invited the

          5  Administration as well as several interested parties

          6  to testify on the bill.  I know Commissioner Toole

          7  is here and her trusty right- hand.  If they can

          8  come forward and please take the table and give us

          9  your insight on this particular bill.  Good morning.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Good

         11  morning Councilman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Can you just sit

         13  down and identify yourself for the record please.

         14  Thank you.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  My

         16  name is Pauline Toole.  I am an Assistant

         17  Commissioner at the City's Department of Consumer

         18  Affairs and this is Andy Eiler, the Legislative

         19  Director for the City's Department of Consumer

         20  Affairs.

         21                 Members of the Committee, Mr.

         22  Chairman, thank you for this opportunity to speak

         23  about Intro. 243- A.  In the past, over the past 20

         24  years our department has conducted a series of

         25  inquiries into the cost of insurance for City
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          2  residence.  We commend the Borough President of

          3  Brooklyn for his work in the culminating of the 2004

          4  report documenting the high cost of auto insurance

          5  in Brooklyn and identifying various measures to

          6  resolve the crisis.

          7                 The report identifies fraudulently

          8  filed no- fault insurance claims as a major force in

          9  driving up the auto insurance rates in the borough

         10  and indeed that is true for throughout the state.

         11  Intro. 243- A is an attempt to address that problem.

         12  The Intro. Would require all clinics that derive 50

         13  percent or more of their billings in a 12 month

         14  period from no- fault motor vehicle insurance

         15  claims, to file a report with the department.

         16                 The report would provide data about

         17  the clinic and its billings and require an affidavit

         18  that the clinic does not employ runners.  The bill

         19  further prohibits the use of runners by no- fault

         20  insurance medical clinics and opposes a fine

         21  schedule for infractions.

         22                 The Administration worked with the

         23  sponsor to develop this proposal, which puts the

         24  burden on the no- fault clinics to report their

         25  billings to the department.  This disclosure will
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          2  give other regulators, advocates in the insurance

          3  industry a chance to better determine the good and

          4  bad players.

          5                 While the DCA fully understands that

          6  the state's Department of Insurance has the ability

          7  to more stringently regulate this industry, we

          8  welcome the opportunity to develop a New York City

          9  database on filing.  This may be a tool that can be

         10  used to clean up the claims and ultimately decrease

         11  the cost of insurance to all New Yorkers, including

         12  those in the Borough of Brooklyn.

         13                 So we are pleased to support this

         14  Intro. And will try to answer any questions you may

         15  have.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: How do you

         17  determine what is a no- fault clinic.  How is that

         18  determination made?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, if it's

         20  a no- fault, it is a claim that would be filed under

         21  the no- fault insurance law for a claim based upon

         22  automobile insurance.  So that would be the basis

         23  for deciding that it falls within the definition

         24  what the law has.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So any possible
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          2  doctor or medical office can actually file the

          3  claim?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Some of

          5  those are legitimate.  So what the bill does is

          6  establish a threshold that if all the entities

          7  billings, if 50 percent of them are solely from no-

          8  fault claims, then we are not casting any aspersions

          9  on them.  We are saying, you need to file with us

         10  that information, because the theory is that is the

         11  number of no- fault claims in the City, particularly

         12  in the Borough of Brooklyn has skyrocketed, so have

         13  insurance costs.  If you understand who those

         14  players are you can begin to ask the next series of

         15  questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Mr.

         18  Chairman, since you are not an attorney, I believe,

         19  it is a little odd to call them no fault claims, I

         20  must say.  Under the no- fault law, any injury

         21  resulting from an automobile accident is if you want

         22  to call it, a no- fault claim, even if at some later

         23  point the fault system is involved.  The no- fault

         24  claims are any claims for medical expenses arising

         25  out of an automobile accident.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And you don't

          4  need to show fault in order to recover for such

          5  claims.  Fault is not an issue. That is why it is

          6  called a no- fault claim.  But it's really any claim

          7  arising out of a motor vehicle accident that gives

          8  rise to your entitlement to no- fault benefits.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So it's a

         11  little strange. The wording is a little strange.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: A little strange.

         13  Right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Because it's

         15  not a no- fault claim.  It's a claim for medical

         16  expenses arising under the no fault law.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But, it has

         19  nothing to do with in essence with no- fault.  So, I

         20  guess what we are talking about here is, maybe, I

         21  don't know if you should change the wording or not.

         22  But it's a clinic that treats people for injuries

         23  suffered in automobile accidents, any automobile

         24  accidents, whether or not fault is involved.  So,

         25  maybe that will help clarify it.  I haven't looked
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          2  at it carefully enough to see whether the definition

          3  is troublesome.  It is a little odd to talk about it

          4  this way though.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  I

          6  understood and I was actually, Council Member,

          7  trying to get the Commissioner to highlight the

          8  point that you know -- Any what she did is, that a

          9  medical institution or medical clinic that has over

         10  50 percent of its business in just insurance claims

         11  seems to be the problem area that are driving up

         12  costs. But technically any medical office could fill

         13  out an claim, as you said, but when you put in here

         14  no- fault medical clinic, I was just wondering if

         15  you wanted to refine and explain that a little bit.

         16  I'm not a lawyer but maybe I'll be one later on when

         17  I grow up, you know.  So, we'll see.

         18                 So, I kind of understood that.  I

         19  really just wanted you to highlight the differences,

         20  how you identify a clinic that is actually moving

         21  beyond along in filing these types of claims wherein

         22  lies the problem especially in and around the

         23  Borough.  So, I just wanted to clear up that wording

         24  from your testimony vis- a vis where we are today.

         25                 Do any other agencies respond to no-
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          2  fault car insurance fraud?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well

          4  the State Insurance Department is the chief

          5  regulator of insurance and fraud and the Attorney

          6  General could play a role as well I believe.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: District

          8  Attorney's, I mean technically speaking no- fault or

          9  any kind of insurance fraud is a penal code

         10  violation.  So a District Attorney would be able to

         11  pursue fault fought claims, along with the insurance

         12  department. But it's essentially insurance fraud, is

         13  a penal code violation.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  All right,

         15  I want to defer for a minute, but I just wanted to

         16  ask the department through rule making or otherwise

         17  that you will share the data that you compile once

         18  the Intro. Is passed because we are planning to vote

         19  it today and take it to the Full Council, that the

         20  reporting mechanism, that the data you compile from

         21  the reporting mechanism is created with the New York

         22  State Department of Insurance so that we can use it

         23  as a tool maybe to combat no- fault insurance on a

         24  different level.  Because while this is the stock of

         25  the problem it is not the end- all of the particular

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  problem, so if you could get back to the Committee

          3  with regular updates on that it would be helpful.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I think

          5  the first reporting is in December of '06 and what

          6  we would do is we would go through rule making to

          7  establish a format for reporting the info to the

          8  Council and making it available.  So we would be

          9  happy to do that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right.  Thank

         11  you.  We have five Committees that are meeting at

         12  the same time.  Since this bill is not one of the

         13  more controversial votes today that is being dealt

         14  with Council Member John Liu would like permission

         15  to record his vote as well, so that he can go to his

         16  next Committee.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you Mr.

         18  Chairman.  I vote yes on this bill.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         20  Council Member Koppell or Yassky have you any

         21  questions for the Administration.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Just very

         23  briefly and I also want to particularly thank you

         24  Commissioner and your department for engaging so

         25  productively on this.  I think when the bill was
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          2  first introduced this responsibility was located in

          3  the Department of Health.  But I think it speaks

          4  volumes about the commitment of the Department of

          5  Consumer Affairs, as they said, wait a second, this

          6  is a problem we really want to tackle and we want to

          7  take on and get some help to New Yorkers who are

          8  dealing with these high rates. So I thank you for

          9  doing that.

         10                 And I guess I agree completely with

         11  what you've said really in your testimony and this

         12  is a first step.  What this will help us do is

         13  figure out if there are more things that we as a

         14  City can do to help go after people who are ripping

         15  off the system.  And what you said about this being

         16  a no- fault specialist doesn't necessarily mean that

         17  you are doing anything wrong.  I get that. But I

         18  think what this does is it let's us try and figure

         19  out how you can separate the good from the bad

         20  apples.  Because plainly there are bad apples.  I

         21  think there is no -- and I don't think anybody

         22  really would dispute that.  And so what I would I

         23  guess ask as the data comes in, if you would work,

         24  as I am sure you would, with me and with anyone who

         25  is interested in trying to figure out what then, how
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          2  we can call from that data information that will

          3  help really go after the bad apples.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

          5  Absolutely.  And we were actually talking a little

          6  bit before the Hearing about steps we need to take

          7  to implement this most constructively.  You know,

          8  getting some word out to a variety of practitioners

          9  that they need to report and maybe coming up with a

         10  standardized format so what you get is something

         11  that can be usable.  But we would be thrilled to

         12  keep you in that movement and obviously report back

         13  to the Council fully.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you and

         15  thanks again Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Seeing no

         17  other questions of the Administration. I also want

         18  to thank the Administration for coming and

         19  supporting this legislation and working with the

         20  sponsor and all of these members here and the

         21  Council Staff to try to come up with a compromise

         22  that you can live with.  I hope that as we move

         23  forward, we can work on some other issues regarding

         24  insurance. I am actually trying to get new car

         25  insurance now and it is frustrating.  So we will
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          2  work on that in a little bit.  But thank you for

          3  coming.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Next we have a

          7  person who needs no real introduction.  He is the

          8  champion of the Borough of Brooklyn, I know that he

          9  would like to say a few words, Borough President

         10  Marty Markowitz.  Would you take a seat at the table

         11  sir.

         12                 MR. MARKOWITZ: Okay.  Thank you very

         13  much.  I appreciate the opportunity.  I want to

         14  thank across Members of the City Council.  David

         15  Yassky, thank you for picking up the torch. Because

         16  Borough Presidents as you know, we cannot vote here,

         17  although we can introduce legislation, if a Member

         18  of the Council will permit it.  I am most

         19  appreciative David, you took the time and interest

         20  as you always do on issues of concerns of Brooklyn

         21  and to New Yorkers and to your colleagues Council

         22  Member Fidler and Nelson, Recchia and other members,

         23  Olly Koppell, Gail Brewer, I very much appreciate

         24  you all for doing this. I want to commend also

         25  speaker Christine Quinn for recognizing the
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          2  importance of this crucial issue to the residents of

          3  Brooklyn and indeed all New York City.

          4                   I am proud to say that this year

          5  Brooklyn will be visited by more tourists than ever

          6  before.  I am talking about real tourists.  But

          7  Brooklyn also has tens of thousands if not hundreds

          8  of thousands of what we call live- in tourists.

          9  Brooklyn residents who are so fed up with Brooklyn

         10  sky- high auto insurance rates that they license

         11  their vehicles out of state.  If you walk down most

         12  of our residential streets, you will see plates from

         13  Iowa, Utah, Vermont, Minnesota, Ohio, Florida  I can

         14  assure you that these tourists sleep in Brooklyn

         15  every single night of the week.

         16                 But, we would be jumping the gun to

         17  call these people scofflaws. In fact most of them

         18  are hard- working Brooklynites.  They rely on their

         19  cars for travel.  They are families with multiple

         20  children.  They are diverse as Brooklyn itself.

         21  They range from middle- income to what we would call

         22  the working- poor.  And many of these Brooklynites

         23  have livelihoods that depend upon their cars.  But

         24  due to Brooklyn having among the highest car

         25  insurance rates in America, because of rampant, out-
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          2  of control fraud, these people are forced to make a

          3  decision that they should never have to make.

          4  Either give up their vehicle because their insurance

          5  is so expensive, license the car illegally out- of

          6  state, or as many of them do, sign up for a policy

          7  and then drop after their first premium.

          8                 The inspiration for the bill that we

          9  are here to discuss today is a report produced in

         10  2004 by my office in cooperation with Assembly

         11  Member Jim Brennan, as part of our task force on

         12  Equity and State and Local Policy.  That report

         13  includes statistics now familiar to many of you.

         14  For example, a thirty- five year old Brooklyn male

         15  with a good driving record, the premium for the

         16  minimum legal coverage is far above the state and

         17  national averages.  If you go for full coverage the

         18  premium jumps into the stratosphere.  Rates are so

         19  high that in many cases our residents

         20  pay more for car insurance of one year than they pay

         21  for the car itself.

         22                 Since the fall of '04, thanks to

         23  pressure from officials like you and I, the State

         24  Insurance Department, a rate for some Brooklynites

         25  have fallen anywhere from 3 to 10 percent. Let's
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          2  face it.  For a person paying $4,500 a year in car

          3  insurance, that difference is almost meaningless.

          4  In Brooklyn we call it chunk- change.  Are Brooklyn

          5  rates so high because we are bad drivers?  Do the

          6  insurance companies all see the car chase in the

          7  French Connection and think that is how we drive

          8  No.  What it comes down to in many ways is straight

          9  up broad and what we call Medicaid, medical mills,

         10  clinics that take advantage of Brooklyn's no- fault

         11  insurance.

         12                 These medical mills file fabricated

         13  or inflated personal injury claims and bag a list of

         14  profits at the expense of law abiding Brooklynites

         15  and New Yorkers. In short, these medical scams are

         16  car- jacking honest Brooklynites.

         17                 This bill exemplifies the very best

         18  of a major step forward that what government can do

         19  for its citizens and residents. And that is it

         20  protects them from liars and thieves who have no

         21  regard for the common good and common decency that

         22  the vast majority of us cherish and practice.  In

         23  Brooklyn alone, costs from fraudulent no- fault

         24  injury claims amounts to hundreds of millions of

         25  dollars per year.  More than one- third of the total

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  for the entire state.  I am not proud of that.  But,

          3  less those of you outside of Brooklyn, Queens, the

          4  Bronx and parts of Long Island and Buffalo face the

          5  same problem.  A full- blown industry devoted to

          6  auto insurance fraud.  Obviously, all of us are

          7  saying, we cannot tolerate this injustice any

          8  longer.

          9                 On behalf of our 2.6 million

         10  Brooklynites I am here to support this bill, which

         11  requires that every single clinic billing out 50

         12  percent or more in no- fault vehicle insurance

         13  medical claims must report to the Department of

         14  Consumer of Affairs.  Once we know who is operating

         15  the medical mills and how many of them we are

         16  dealing with, we can build on the positive results

         17  of investigations and successful prosecutions.

         18                 Another thing that this bill does, is

         19  cut the legs from under the medical- mill runners

         20  and it's about time.  By reducing this kind of

         21  fraud, we are in a position to demand that insurance

         22  companies step up and be responsible corporate

         23  citizens. That's got to be page two David and

         24  Members of the City Council. The insurance industry

         25  has to be a part of this and they have to feel that
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          2  their priority is eliminating and minimizing fraud

          3  in the system.  They have to step- up to that, in

          4  that they provide their essential services without

          5  burdening the honest premium paying Brooklyn

          6  residents who are their bread and butter.

          7                 The medical mills are the real

          8  reckless drivers. They are the ones driving up

          9  rates.  Our message to them, the joy ride is over.

         10  Accidents happen we know that, but not acting on

         11  this issue is negligence pure and simple.  Let's

         12  drive the bill safely to passage.

         13                 Let me just conclude Council Members.

         14    About two years ago, I'll be very brief, with

         15  Shame On You, I went to Newark, New Jersey, the

         16  airport, and I rented a car previously, rented a

         17  car.  It was $69.95 for a full car, for a full- size

         18  car for one day and I pre- arranged it, the billing

         19  and everything else.  I get to the airport and they

         20  said license and registration and I showed them

         21  obviously my registration and license and they see

         22  my address as Brooklyn and it went from $69.95 to

         23  $179 that car.  And I said whoa.  And of course I

         24  knew that they were going to say this.  And I said

         25  why?  And they said, sorry sir, because you're a
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          2  Brooklyn residence.  We charge you x- more if you

          3  were Queens x- more, the Bronx x- more, Staten

          4  Island not a penny more and Manhattan barely a penny

          5  more.  And I asked why and they said, because of the

          6  amount of fraud and criminality.

          7                 And what they are doing is they are

          8  criminalizing all of us because the great majority

          9  of the drivers in New York City and in Brooklyn are

         10  good drivers.  But we are being penalized by these

         11  scoundrels, scoundrels that are abusing the system

         12  and milking it and frauding it for every penny they

         13  can get.

         14                 So David, Councilman Yassky thank

         15  you.  This is a major step forward and I am hoping

         16  that in the days to come will eliminate the fraud

         17  and bring those rates down to what New Yorkers and

         18  Brooklynites should be paying.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Any questions?

         20  Council Member Koppell.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I would like

         22  to get a copy of the report Mr. Borough President.

         23                 MR. MARKOWITZ: Absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I want to

         25  congratulate you on this but what I was curious
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          2  about, maybe the report reflects this, and you may

          3  have some thought on this because you mention the

          4  insurance industry.  Do you have the impression that

          5  the insurance industry is aggressively investigating

          6  claims to ascertain whether those claims are

          7  legitimate or not.

          8                 MR. MARKOWITZ: Personally, and

          9  everything we've heard, the answer is no.  The

         10  answer is no.  They can be doing a far better job at

         11  aggressively going after thought -- Listen, who is

         12  paying out the money?  They are.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

         14                 MR. MARKOWITZ: They got the power to

         15  write the check.  They have the ultimate power.

         16  Clearly, any records that are available to the state

         17  they could get.  And internally, you can't tell me

         18  that they can't, with all the fancy computers track

         19  those medical mills that are putting in the majority

         20  of claims and squeeze them out.  So I really believe

         21  they have that opportunity and I'm hoping that with

         22  this legislation it will be an incentive for the

         23  industry to be far more aggressive.

         24                 You know what we are saying Council

         25  Member.  We're saying to them, we want to save them

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  money too.  You understand that.  This is a win- win

          3  for the industry as well as for their customers,

          4  which are our constituents.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

          6  Yassky.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Well thank

          8  you and Mr. Borough President, Marty, before you

          9  arrived at that point I did point out this bill

         10  really is your idea.  And I just want to thank you

         11  again on behalf of my constituents for your bringing

         12  it to light, not just the issue, believe me.  Our

         13  constituents know that there is an issue, but for

         14  pointing the way toward doing something about it.

         15  So thank you for that.

         16                 I agree with you and I understand

         17  what you are saying about this is just a step, there

         18  has got to be more and enforcement is the key,

         19  obviously.  I do think I will tell you for having

         20  worked with some of the insurers on this, that now

         21  they do understand the problem and I think are

         22  devoting some resources and I agree with you.  We've

         23  got to make sure they are totally bought in to

         24  solving this.  I do think that we have to work with

         25  the District Attorney's Office as well.
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          2                 I mean, another speaker proposed

          3  extra funding in this year's budget for our DA

          4  offices.  This is, I think we should work with them

          5  as they are beefing up their resources so that they

          6  deal with this, because they do get referrals.  And

          7  one thing that we asked in the Hearing how many

          8  referrals do you get, how many prosecutions have you

          9  made.  The number of prosecutions really does not

         10  square with the number of referrals.  And I

         11  understand, those are difficult cases, they require

         12  a lot of resources, when you know, you are dealing

         13  with gun crimes, you've got to deal with that first.

         14    I understand our DA's officers are strapped.  But

         15  they have to make this a priority as well.

         16                 So I look forward, I hope we can work

         17  on it again and to do that.  Thank you again.  I

         18  mean it. Thank you.

         19                 MR. MARKOWITZ: I just want to add if

         20  I may is that we are, as each day goes forward, not

         21  only the amount of money that's the cost for car

         22  insurance, but the ever increasing number of those

         23  that have no car insurance.  And that's a real

         24  threat to the public safety.  And as long as these

         25  rates are as high as they are, we're all in
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          2  jeopardy.  We all are in jeopardy.  And that's why

          3  the swift passage of this and I hope future

          4  legislation, is absolutely necessary.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I want to thank

          6  you for coming. I want to thank you for creating the

          7  bill and talking to Council Member Yassky and for

          8  being here with your impassioned speech this morning

          9  just to remind us in case any of us are drifting

         10  down a different direction, to pull us right back to

         11  Brooklyn.  Thank you.

         12                 MR. MARKOWITZ: Okay.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Next we will

         14  hear from Marc Dittenhoefer, New York State Trial

         15  Lawyers Association.

         16                 Good morning, and if you could say

         17  your name for the record.  I know it's a hard act to

         18  follow the Borough President so any animation you

         19  put in will be an extra plus.

         20                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: That's why I'm

         21  trying to be quiet for just a little while, just let

         22  it settle into the room.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         24                 MR. DITTENHOEFFER:  Good morning Mr.

         25  Chair, Members of the Committee.  My name is Marc
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          2  Dittenhoefer.  I am a State- wide Officer and Chair

          3  of the Automobile Litigation and No- Fault Insurance

          4  Committee of the New York State Trial Lawyers

          5  Association.

          6                 The Honorable Chair and Members of

          7  this City Council.  The New York State Trial Lawyers

          8  Association would like to take this opportunity to

          9  extend to you and especially to Council Member

         10  Yassky, its gratitude for your willingness to take

         11  us into your confidence during the gestation of this

         12  legislation, as well as for your open- mindedness in

         13  considering concerns in this field that are of major

         14  import to our clients and our members.  NYSTLA has

         15  indeed come quite a long way from the vehement

         16  opposition to the original Intro. 708 we voiced in

         17  testimony before the Council's Committees on Health

         18  and Consumer Affairs back on last October 31st.

         19                 The scourge of No- Fault Automobile

         20  Insurance fraud is a complex series of problems that

         21  currently are being addressed by a largely under

         22  coordinated and under funded mix of Federal, State

         23  and industry law enforcement and should this Intro.

         24  Become law, local initiatives.  NYSTLA continues to

         25  agree with both the members of the Brooklyn DA's

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  office and the representatives of the City's

          3  Department of Health and Consumer Affairs, all of

          4  whom testified last October, all of whom testified

          5  that fraud is essentially a law enforcement problem,

          6  not a law enactment one. Our greatest satisfaction

          7  in watching this Intro. Develop is in witnessing how

          8  it has changed from a broad and questionable

          9  regulatory scheme to a discrete focus upon an

         10  activity practiced only by scoundrels, employing, or

         11  earning income as a "runner". This, we believe is

         12  all to the good.

         13                 We still have a few reservations

         14  about the Intro's final version however.  We feel

         15  the section on Legislative Intent accepts too

         16  uncritically and wholeheartedly certain assertions

         17  that we have not found to be accurate or verifiable,

         18  conventional wisdom the sort of which is usually

         19  neither conventional nor wisdom at all.   We remain

         20  wary of the specter of a broad regulatory role for

         21  the City to play in this issue, a concept which we

         22  have serious and constitutional issues with on

         23  several levels.

         24                 We are quite worried that this

         25  legislation, well intentioned and focused as it is,
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          2  might be used in the future as a predicate for

          3  broadening the City's reach into areas we feel it

          4  should not go, areas that the City's own Departments

          5  had admitted a lack of expertise, experience or

          6  interest in pursuing.  Most importantly of all, we

          7  are concerned that the definition of runner is drawn

          8  too narrowly by this Intro., permitting escape by

          9  many whom this law should seek to ensnare.

         10                 It has long been said that "the

         11  perfect is the enemy of the good": That to hold out

         12  for an ideal is to eliminate the opportunity for

         13  progress toward that ideal.  Accordingly, NYSTLA's

         14  leadership has had to weigh its concerns about this

         15  Intro's. Imperfections against the chances of it

         16  having a positive effect on stopping or limiting the

         17  running, chasing and steering of cases and the

         18  effects this scams have had upon the public, the

         19  insurance ratepayer, innocent citizens, our own

         20  clients and our own practices.

         21                 We have determined that, despite our

         22  reservations, this Intro. 243 deserves our support

         23  when it comes up for a vote before the Council.  We

         24  hope you understand why we feel we must detail all

         25  of the above in this message.  We shall monitor the
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          2  progress of this measure should it become law, and

          3  shall hope and be willing to work toward ensuring

          4  that our reservations do not ripen into problems in

          5  the future.

          6                 It has been a pleasure working with

          7  Council member Yassky on this matter, as well as

          8  with his Aide Mr. Randall Johnson and the Health

          9  Committee Aide Ms. Ann Thomas.  The New York State

         10  Trial Lawyers Association thanks you all for your

         11  willingness to hear us out on these matters that are

         12  of such gravity to so many of our clients and our

         13  members.

         14                 Also, if I may add, Council Member

         15  Koppell, I notice that you asked of Borough

         16  President Markowitz, if you could get a copy of the

         17  task force support that he issued about a year and

         18  one half ago.  The Trial Lawyers analyzed that task

         19  force report in great detail.  We would like the

         20  opportunity also to send to you and any other

         21  Council Member who would like to see it, our

         22  analysis of that task force report.  While no one

         23  could quarrel with Borough President Markowitz's

         24  good intentions and enthusiasm, all directed in the

         25  right directions on this issue, we found a number of
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          2  conclusions drawn by that report to be a little

          3  troubling and not something that should be packaged

          4  and taken at face- value.

          5                 On of the things that the report

          6  itself recommended was, repealing or suspending no-

          7  fault in Brooklyn alone.  It sounds good because it

          8  did hit on a lot of serious problems, but there are

          9  problems with City regulation on a problem that is

         10  essentially a state- wide problem that really the

         11  state insurance department and the state health

         12  department and a lot of other state and district

         13  attorneys have primary jurisdiction and expertise

         14  over.  We have to be careful about expanding this in

         15  the future by large increments. So to anyone who

         16  would be interested and certainly to Member Koppell

         17  who has asked for it, we would be happy to forward

         18  our copy of the analysis of the Brooklyn Borough

         19  President's Task Force Report.

         20                 Any questions or comments, I would be

         21  glad to respond.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, we would

         23  like that if you could pass that along to all the

         24  Members of the Committee.

         25                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: It would be our
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          2  pleasure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Are you familiar

          4  since you raised it and I probably should know more

          5  about this than I do.  Do you know if there have

          6  been any recent studies by the state, either by the

          7  insurance department or the legislature as to how

          8  much of a problem fraudulent claims under the no-

          9  fault law is, how much of a problem it is?

         10                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: I am not aware of

         11  any recent studies that have been published by the

         12  state.  I serve also on the New York State Insurance

         13  Department No- Fault Arbitrator Screening Panel,

         14  which helps the Superintendent of Insurance decide

         15  whose going to be hired as a no- fault arbitrator

         16  and whose going to be renewed their annual one- year

         17  renewable contract as no- fault arbitrators.  In

         18  that context we hear all the time about the states

         19  statistics on fraud and we read in the papers, just

         20  like everybody else about a lot of fraud indictments

         21  that don't often end up in fraud convictions.

         22                 It's a very, very complex problem and

         23  I'm not sure that there is one database that anyone

         24  can turn to that gives reliable information on this.

         25    That is one of the reasons the Trial Lawyers is
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          2  willing to put aside a number of its reservations to

          3  support this bill, because at the beginning of a, at

          4  least a City wide reliable database from which we

          5  can start to weed out, as someone said before, the

          6  good from the bad apples.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Let me ask

          8  you this question, because I take it from what you

          9  say that you handle a large number of automobile

         10  accident cases, you yourself or your colleagues.

         11                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Is it your

         13  experience that insurance companies readily pay

         14  medical claims arising out of automobile accidents

         15  without investigation?  Is that your experience?

         16                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: My experience is

         17  that the vast majority, and I think my friends from

         18  the insurance industry will probably agree with me

         19  on this, if not anything else.  That the vast

         20  majority of claims made under no- fault law are

         21  paid.  Then there is the arbitration process for

         22  disputed claims and a percentage of those disputes

         23  arise out of fraudulent allegations. In other words

         24  the allegation that the claim in somehow there is a

         25  fraudulent stamp on it somehow.  But most of the

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  claims are paid.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But that

          4  doesn't mean that they are fraudulent, does it?

          5                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Not at all.  As a

          6  matter of fact it tends to mean just the opposite.

          7  The vast majority of claims submitted by even these

          8  multi- disciplinary medical practices, some of which

          9  are mills, many of which are painted with that false

         10  tag, are legitimate claims.  They are people who

         11  were legitimately injured in legitimate automobile

         12  accidents, who needed legitimate medical treatment.

         13  And the industry pays that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I just, I

         15  mean I have no problem supporting this bill and I am

         16  a sponsor.  But, I'm just curious about and I am

         17  sure there is fraud, you know, I am convinced of

         18  that.  At the same time, I think we do have someone

         19  here from the insurance industry to testify. But, I

         20  was just wondering whether your experience in

         21  representing people, whether you see the insurance

         22  in the cases you handle, I'm sure that there are

         23  many cases where there are personal injuries.  And I

         24  think, I stated it correctly didn't I, that where

         25  there is a personal injury in connection with an
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          2  automobile accident, there is automatically a claim

          3  under the no- fault law.

          4                 MR. DITTENHOEFER:  In most cases,

          5  yes.  It gets a little dicier than that as opposed

          6  to who you have the accident with.  There are

          7  covered persons and non- covered persons.  A

          8  motorcyclist gets in an accident, it's a motor

          9  vehicle accident, but he is not covered by no-

         10  fault.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.  Just

         12  car accidents.

         13                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Car accidents, yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So regardless

         15  of whether there is a claim under the fault system,

         16  if there is an injury there is always a claim under

         17  the no- fault, right?

         18                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And when

         20  those claims are handled by insurance companies,

         21  your experience, before they pay do they do an

         22  investigation of the circumstances of the accident.

         23  Do they do it for instance at deposition or

         24  examination of the claimant?

         25                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: They have the right
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          2  to conduct what are known in the no- fault world as

          3  EUOs, Examinations Under Oath.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

          5                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: There are time

          6  limitations involved here.  They are required to

          7  pay, deny or ask for further verification within 30

          8  days.  Their ability to conduct pre- claim or

          9  prepayment investigation is somewhat circumscribed

         10  by what the law mandates that they do.  But, they

         11  have mechanisms by which they can delay that time by

         12  request for further verification and take advantage

         13  of EUOs, which are Examinations Under Oath,

         14  independent medical examinations. They call them

         15  independent.  We call them the "I" stands for

         16  insurance.  They can hire doctors to examine the

         17  people who have been treated by their own doctors.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And do they

         19  do that?

         20                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Yes, to some degree

         21  they do.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you Mr.

         23  Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         25  Yassky.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well thank

          3  you.  First of all I just want to say from my

          4  experience in dealing and working with Mr.

          5  Dittenhoefer on this, I would just advise Members of

          6  the Committee, you know, if you ever do need a

          7  lawyer and Oliver Koppell is unavailable, I would go

          8  straight to Mr. Dittenhoefer because he's a highly

          9  effective advocate.  So, I just want to thank you

         10  very personally, directly for helping improve this.

         11                 And I understand I think, your point

         12  about you know, not going too far.  On the other

         13  hand, you know you said don't let the perfect be the

         14  enemy of the good.  I think we have to say there is

         15  no question that there is abuse of no- fault and the

         16  system creates potential for abuse in a way that you

         17  know maybe it's impossible.  Medicaid has potential

         18  for abuse.  We get rid of Medicaid?  Of course not.

         19  Anybody that suggests that would be dead wrong.  The

         20  same with no- fault.  I think it would be a terrible

         21  thing for the state to get rid of no- fault, it's

         22  highly valuable. At the same time and you know

         23  Council Member Koppell's question, I don't have the

         24  numbers right in front of me but, it's not just the

         25  antidotal evidence, of which there is an enormous
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          2  amount.

          3                 And you know, we spend a lot of time

          4  talking with Assistant DAs and the investigators at

          5  the insurance companies themselves have hired and

          6  you know, after enough concrete examples of a

          7  particular, you know, physical therapy shop that

          8  does only no fault and does $25 thousand per

          9  patient, then you know, they can't be the only ones

         10  out there.  And I focused on Brooklyn because that's

         11  where I represent, has the average claim, size of

         12  the claim per person is just waived.  I don't have

         13  it in front of me, it's something like twice as high

         14  as the state- wide average.

         15                 If anything, one would think that you

         16  know, people are driving at lower speeds here and

         17  there is no reason to think that the claims would be

         18  so out- of- whack in terms of the size of the claim.

         19    The numbers of claims above $10 thousand or

         20  whatever the threshold was, which separates out

         21  routine injury, these are people really trying to --

         22  some of them are serious but some of them are people

         23  trying to rip off.  So, I think the numbers do

         24  backup that there is a high enough incidence of

         25  fraud to merit a governmental response.
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          2                 You know, much like with things like

          3  Medicaid or welfare reform, examples I can think of.

          4    When you don't address the issues that are there,

          5  you just give ammunition to people who want to then

          6  go and try, you know. I feel that those of us who

          7  strongly support Safety Net, made a mistake by not

          8  addressing issues and then you let the right-

          9  wingers come and say let's get rid of the whole

         10  thing altogether.  So that's the only kind of call-

         11  to- arms I would give to you. If there are real

         12  issues we have to address them we can't sweep them

         13  under the rug because then sooner or later they come

         14  back to bite.

         15                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: If I may just

         16  respond to that.  I think the position of the New

         17  York State Trial Lawyers as well as my own personal

         18  position would be that the acceptable percentage of

         19  fraud in the no- fault system is zero percent.  I

         20  think that this Council probably feels the same way.

         21    Nevertheless, I don't have the statistics to back

         22  it up because I am not an insurance company or have

         23  access to the statistics that they do.  But, I have

         24  done informal study on this.  I look at my own

         25  insurance bill when it comes every year.  I register
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          2  in Manhattan.  I look at all my clients insurance

          3  bills when they come in.  No- fault is not the

          4  biggest ticket item on most peoples automobile

          5  insurance bills. It's the collision, it's the

          6  comprehensive.  It doesn't mean to belittle the fact

          7  that people who do not carry the top coverages on

          8  their vehicles still have to pay way too much in

          9  Brooklyn and New York for auto insurance.  But,

         10  there are many reasons why in New York there are a

         11  lot of MRIs and the availability of more expensive

         12  medical care than there are in Rensilear County or

         13  in Chenago (phonetic) County that medical costs are

         14  higher here.  They are higher in non no-fault

         15  situations here than they are in other parts of the

         16  state.  This is a very rate making, flex rating,

         17  very, very complex statewide stuff this insurance

         18  business.  They know a lot and they are very good at

         19  it these insurance companies and it's really kind of

         20  hard to isolate one problem which is clearly a

         21  problem, no one is making light of it.

         22                 But to make a local rule and a series

         23  of local rules that are different from rules in a

         24  county just a few miles away, they are not part of

         25  the City, it could upset a whole apple cart in terms
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          2  of a state- wide scheme.  We must be very careful.

          3  On this bill we have no problem coming out

          4  unequivocally against runners.               As a

          5  matter of fact, I think as you and I spoke, and as I

          6  put in my statement, we think that the definition of

          7  runners is a little too easy going.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And just also

          9  for the record and for the Committee, I understand

         10  and I think there was some merit to your argument

         11  about what the runner definition should be. The

         12  Administration, I guess they are -- You know I don't

         13  blame them, they are not here right now.  One of

         14  their --

         15                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: I shouldn't take it

         16  personally.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: No, no, that

         18  was something, part of the bill that they did feel

         19  strongly about and I thought it was very important

         20  to have the Administration completely enthused about

         21  going out and enforcing this law and to me the trade

         22  off of a slightly narrower definition and ideal in

         23  return for their enthusiastic commitment to go out

         24  and work on this, I thought was worthwhile.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you Mr.
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          2  Dittenhoefer.  I want to thank you for coming.  I

          3  look forward to talking with you at another point

          4  regarding some of your reservations about the bill,

          5  so we can actually try to deal with putting

          6  something else together to help you out down the

          7  line.

          8                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: It would be my

          9  pleasure sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you for

         11  coming.

         12                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Thank you very

         13  much.  Have a good day all.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Next

         15  we will hear from Gary Henning, American Insurance

         16  Association.  Whenever you are ready.

         17                 MR. HENNING:  Good morning Mr.

         18  Chairman.  For the record my name is Gary Henning.

         19  I'm the Assistant Vice President for the Northeast

         20  Region for the American Insurance Association (AIA).

         21  AIA is a national trade association of more than 400

         22  property and casualty insurance companies and

         23  collectively we write about 20 percent of the New

         24  York State auto market.

         25                 I would like to thank you Mr.
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          2  Chairman for holding this Hearing on this important

          3  topic.  I also wanted to thank Council Member

          4  Yassky, and Randall, the staff for working so hard

          5  on this issue.  We are in full support of Intro.

          6  243- A.  And I would like to thank the rest of the

          7  Council Members here for paying attention to this

          8  issue.

          9                 I have submitted lengthy testimony,

         10  plenty of statistics and what I would like to do

         11  today is just have that entered into the record and

         12  give you the executive summary, the highlights in

         13  attempt to answer some of the questions that have

         14  been raised earlier at the Hearing.

         15                 One thing I would like to talk about

         16  for a minute is what makes no- fault fraud

         17  particularly attractive.  Each person in an accident

         18  is eligible for $50 thousand in benefits and these

         19  services are delivered on a fee- for- service basis.

         20    It's probably one of the few arenas where medical

         21  care is delivered in a non managed care setting.

         22  And up until recently it's been a low priority for

         23  law enforcement. However, that has changed.  Law

         24  enforcement, we still think they could be doing more

         25  to address Council Member Koppell's issue.  The
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          2  companies have been paying more attention to fraud.

          3                 Back in 1998 there was state law that

          4  required insurance carriers to set up SIUs, Special

          5  Investigative Units to investigate fraud.  So the

          6  companies have established these units, they have

          7  committed more resources because in the end our

          8  companies benefit, our policyholders benefit when we

          9  root out fraud.

         10                 The problem though is, it's a

         11  balancing act because whenever you investigate a

         12  claim, one, you're going to if it's a legitimate

         13  claim you are going to make one of your

         14  policyholders angry and it costs money.  So you have

         15  to determine which claims you are going to

         16  investigate.  As to how quickly the claims are paid,

         17  I don't have the exact statistics on me, but I

         18  believe it's around 85 or 90 percent of the no-

         19  fault claims are paid within the first ten days.

         20                 So we want to get these claims

         21  settled.  We want to keep our customers happy.

         22  Whenever there is a claim we have to set aside money

         23  reserves on our books.  So we don't want to have to

         24  set aside those reserves, so we want to settle it

         25  quickly.  So really what you are talking about is in
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          2  these disputed claims is a small percentage.  It's

          3  probably, you know, under ten percent, fifteen at

          4  the tops.  I don't think it's even that much.

          5                 So there has been increasing emphasis

          6  on fraud investigations on the part of law

          7  enforcement and the company.  The statistics that

          8  Council Member Yassky was referring to, the claims

          9  frequency as well as the average claim cost while

         10  for the City they are still high, they have been

         11  going down over the past several years and the

         12  premiums have gone down as well.  You know, maybe

         13  not as much as anyone would like.  I know automobile

         14  insurance is still expensive but, you know to

         15  address Borough President Markowitz's ten percent of

         16  $4,500 is $4.50 and I don't know if I would classify

         17  that as chunk change.

         18                 But, we are still trying to root out

         19  more fraud, which will help reduce the costs.

         20  That's why AIA supports Intro. 243- A because while

         21  progress has been made, the statistics and antidotal

         22  evidence still suggests that there is a fraud

         23  problem and we believe that this legislation will be

         24  another tool in the arsenal to fight fraud and lower

         25  rates.
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          2                 We like the idea of having another

          3  database that law enforcement, the insurance

          4  department and the carriers can tap into.  Fraud

          5  investigation is part detective work, but it's also

          6  part computer modeling of patterns.  For example, if

          7  you had one person stage accidents, they could do it

          8  with five different companies and without

          9  coordination it would just look like a random event.

         10    But once you get everything together into one

         11  database you'll be able to see patterns better.

         12  While there is statistical bureaus that do this, the

         13  department does that.  It's always helpful to have

         14  another entity compiling data from which we can look

         15  at and work from.

         16                 Also, the bill with the increased

         17  penalties for the runners, the not less than $10

         18  thousand fine, I think that is a significant fine

         19  and I think that will even act as a deterrent. So,

         20  we applaud the Council and Council Member Yassky.

         21  Despite his views on my industry, Borough President

         22  Markowitz for the attention that he brought to this

         23  issue, we believe it's good legislation that will

         24  help reduce fraud and thereby lower premiums.  I can

         25  take any questions you have now.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Question?

          3  Council Member Koppell.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I would like

          5  to draw attention to the charts.

          6                 MR. HENNING: My charts?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Your charts.

          8  Attachment 1- A some very striking numbers here.

          9  The claim cost --

         10                 MR. HENNING:  That's the average

         11  claim.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: -- That's the

         13  average claim cost for injuries suffered in a motor

         14  vehicle for no- fault benefits.

         15                 MR. HENNING: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And I notice

         17  that the average claim cost is relatively the same

         18  everywhere roughly.  What does claim frequency mean?

         19                 MR. HENNING: No- fault claims per one

         20  thousand vehicles insured.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I see.  And

         22  that seems to have gone down markedly in the three-

         23  years here, it's not the last three years.

         24                 MR. HENNING: Yes, that's correct. I

         25  can get some information.  The Insurance Information
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          2  Institute collects data on frequency.  I just

          3  recently got something and wasn't able to put it in.

          4    But for New York State the frequency and claim

          5  costs have been going down antidotally.  I don't

          6  have the statistics but one would assume that's what

          7  is happening in New York City as well.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well, but if

          9  you look at these numbers it's traumatic.  It's more

         10  than half.  The reduction is more than half in

         11  almost every area, more than half in every area.

         12  Why is that?  How did that happen?

         13                 MR. HENNING: I'm sorry.  The

         14  reduction?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Yes.  I mean

         16  claim frequency looking down, take in the South

         17  Bronx, it was enormously high.  It was 13 and then

         18  in 2003 it was in this case a little more than half

         19  but still huge reduction now to 7.7.  Looking at

         20  Brooklyn it went from 8.8 in 2001 to 3.3, almost a

         21  one- third reduction in those three years.

         22                 MR. HENNING: Okay.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: How could,

         24  what caused that?

         25                 MR. HENNING: Okay.  Back in 2001 the
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          2  insurance department promulgated regulations,

          3  amendments to Regulations 68, which would reduce for

          4  us some very significant reporting time frames.  The

          5  regulation shortened the time period in which a

          6  person had to report to the carrier from 90 days to

          7  30 days.  It also reduced the time that a medical

          8  provider had to submit a claim to the insurance

          9  carrier from 180 to 45 days.

         10                 Now these time frames are important

         11  because as you heard Mr. Dittenhoefer mention, we

         12  have some time pressures in deciding what to do with

         13  these claims.  So the quicker we know about the

         14  claims and the quicker we actually get the bills for

         15  the claims, we can figure out, we can get

         16  investigating quicker, we can see patterns of fraud

         17  quicker.  So these regulatory changes, along with a

         18  change to Regulation 83, which established a fee

         19  schedule for Health Care Services and Durable

         20  Medical Equipment, along with the increased emphasis

         21  by law enforcement and the SIUs have all brought

         22  down the cost and the frequency.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well the cost

         24  didn't go down.  The frequency went down enormously.

         25    The cost actually went up.
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          2                 MR. HENNING: I'm sorry.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It's

          4  fascinating to me the change and it's not reflected

          5  in the other states, if you look at the other states

          6  that didn't happen.  It only happened here. Maybe

          7  the time frame change is what did it.  But,

          8  certainly someone ought to examine what produced

          9  such a dramatic reduction in claims.

         10                 MR. HENNING: Well, that's what I

         11  argue in my testimony, is that some of the changes

         12  that took place on the state level, along with the

         13  investigation have resulted in some significant

         14  changes in the no- fault system.  And I think you

         15  are seeing that in the premium, although it's

         16  starting to go down.  I think the last two years the

         17  average premium in the state has gone down.

         18                 There was another piece of

         19  legislation that was enacted, sponsored by

         20  Assemblyman Rubin Diaz last year dealing with the

         21  decertification of these fraudulent medical

         22  providers.  Under that legislation if a person is

         23  found to have defrauded the no fault system they

         24  will loose their ability to participate in that

         25  system.  So back, I guess, when I started working in

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  insurance lobbying in the late '80s no- fault fraud

          3  was rampant.  But since then we have been trying to

          4  do various things to chip away at it. I think the

          5  legislative, the regulatory, as well as the law

          6  enforcement efforts have all shown some promise.  I

          7  think this legislation, as I said, would be another

          8  tool in the arsenal and continue the forward

          9  progress.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         11  Yes, I think you focus on something really pretty

         12  astonishing.  I mean, is it your understanding then

         13  or your contention as an analyst that the roughly 50

         14  percent reduction in number of claims -- This is

         15  when you say all personal injury protection,

         16  voluntary and residual markets, is that a segment?

         17                 MR. HENNING: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: This is

         19  basically everybody with car insurance in New York

         20  City --

         21                 MR. HENNING:  Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: -- The record

         23  of their claim activity.  So the number of claims

         24  submitted dropped, looks like half.  But I guess

         25  somehow City- wide it was only a third.  Well from
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          2  6.7 to 2.9 dropped by considerably more than half.

          3  Were those largely fraudulent claims half that were

          4  not made or were they safer driving, or were they

          5  people who couldn't make claims because of the time

          6  period change.

          7                 MR. HENNING: You know, I can only

          8  guess on that --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But your

         10  guess is --

         11                 MR. HENNING: -- I would think that

         12  some of it is due to a deterrent effect, but I would

         13  guess most of it is because of the increased law

         14  enforcement.  You see over the past couple of years

         15  you may have read about insurers working with local

         16  law enforcement on big no- fault ring busts.  I

         17  think that --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: You're

         19  suggesting that in 2001 half the claims were

         20  fraudulent?

         21                 MR. HENNING: In 2001 half the claims

         22  were fraudulent?  I don't know.  Yeah.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I mean

         24  that's astonishing. But you know this is New York

         25  and strange things happen. But, I think about what
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          2  you said about shortening the time period?  You know

          3  that to me actually sounds like just what I said to

          4  Mr. Dittenhoefer before. You want anybody with a

          5  legitimate claim right, to be able to go to the

          6  doctor, get what they need and have it paid for

          7  obviously.

          8                 I would sure hate if we let the fraud

          9  problem get so troublesome that then you did things

         10  that had the effect of preventing legitimate

         11  claimants from being paid and the time period to me

         12  sounds like it's almost trenches on that.

         13                 MR. HENNING: Well, with the time

         14  period.  The reporting to carriers and this has been

         15  fully litigated all the way up to the Court of

         16  Appeals. The Trial Bar and the Medical Society took

         17  Superintendent Cerio (phonetic) to court saying he

         18  didn't have the authority to shorten these time

         19  frames regulatory and the Court of Appeals ruled

         20  that he did.

         21                 The two time frames that I talked

         22  about before, reporting to the carrier.  I don't

         23  know of any good reasons, maybe a person in a coma

         24  wakes up after the 30th day. But otherwise, if you

         25  get into a car accident there really shouldn't be
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          2  any reason why you can't, you don't report it to

          3  your carrier within 30 days. I know Mr. Dittenhoefer

          4  would have a different view on that but in our

          5  argument for the submission of claims, for medical

          6  claims --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But if you

          8  are defrauding, why do you wait 30 days.  I'm not

          9  sure I understand why that separates out the

         10  fraudulent from the legitimate.  Or does that 30 day

         11  deadline help separate the fraudulent claims from

         12  more legitimate claims?

         13                 MR. HENNING:  I'd have to think on

         14  that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Sorry.

         16                 MR. HENNING: I'm sorry, I don't know.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.  Well

         18  if that's the stated rational for it.

         19                 MR. HENNING: But then it's the

         20  submission of claims is the bigger one for me.  The

         21  submission of the claims. The submission of the

         22  claims from the 180 to the 45, we have, as was

         23  mentioned before, more or less 30 days.  We can

         24  extend that by asking for verification.  But, if you

         25  have 180 days to submit a claim, the carrier could
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          2  get six months worth of claims dumped on the

          3  proverbial doorstep and then so you would have 30

          4  days to look at this whole bundle of claims, which

          5  makes it a lot more difficult because of the time

          6  pressures, to look through all the six months of

          7  claims.  Plus if you suspect something is wrong with

          8  one of those claims, it's already cold for six

          9  months, the oldest claim. So that's why on that --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I don't want

         11  to delay, I don't want to draw, you know tax the

         12  patience of the Committee but I mean at home I have

         13  stacked up pediatrician bills and what not that I've

         14  got to submit to our health insurer that are well

         15  over 30 days I have to say.  And, you know, it seems

         16  to me perfectly plausible that a regular person

         17  whose got to get to work and has to get his kids to

         18  school --

         19                 MR. HENNING: You think to report an

         20  accident claim, where they have an injury.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Could be.  I

         22  don't know. You're more educated than I am, but to

         23  me that is consistent with my understanding of

         24  regular people.  So given that, I'd say the fact

         25  that you can't tell me why to separate out the
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          2  fraudulent from legitimate is kind of troublesome.

          3                 MR. HENNING: Thinking about it more,

          4  if you are going to commit fraud.  If you have it in

          5  you to commit fraud.  You want to commit fraud, it

          6  would make more sense to wait the 90 days because

          7  then the trail is colder, if you will.  Because then

          8  you are getting services for 90 days without us

          9  knowing about it and therefore we can't be doing the

         10  investigation and the trail is kind of cold.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Could you

         12  answer one last question. So okay, this very short

         13  two- year period the number of claims dropped by

         14  half.  The claim cost was roughly the same.  So the

         15  amount paid out in claims dropped by half.

         16                 MR. HENNING:  Well, I don't know how

         17  many.  It's per thousand cars so --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay, so

         19  there may have been more cars in 2003.

         20                 MR. HENNING: It could be I mean, but

         21  generally its-

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  The amount

         23  paid out per vehicle dropped in half.

         24                 MR. HENNING: That's correct. More

         25  than half.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And what's

          3  the comment Pure Premium.

          4                 MR. HENNING: That's how much of the

          5  premium is attributed to no- fault coverage.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Per car.

          7                 MR. HENNING: Per car.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That didn't

          9  drop down.

         10                 MR. HENNING: No, it's six- tenths of

         11  three, not quite.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Pardon me?

         13                 MR. HENNING: Not quite half.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, why is

         15  that?

         16                 MR. HENNING: Again, it could deal

         17  with the number of cars I guess.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm sorry,

         19  you're right. Per claim cost did go up.

         20                 MR. HENNING: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Some.

         22                 MR. HENNING: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.  Thank

         24  you.  Chair Comrie, I just wanted, since this is my

         25  last opportunity to comment, I want to thank you

                                                            60

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  very, very much for doing this Hearing and making

          3  this one of your first priorities as Chair.  I think

          4  this is a terrific thing to have taken on as a first

          5  priority, and I really commend you for it and thank

          6  you for it.  I just also want to take the

          7  opportunity to thank both Randall Johnson and my

          8  staff who worked, put a lot of hours.  As you see,

          9  there are a lot of details in these bills, put a lot

         10  of hours into getting those details.  I think it's

         11  close to right as one can in government and I really

         12  want to thank him for that.  And also Ann Thomas,

         13  the Health Committee Counsel, or maybe this

         14  Committee now or both.  But I started working with

         15  her when she was Health Committee Counsel and she

         16  also I know just poured in a lot of time and energy

         17  and really the very best in our public service.  So,

         18  thank you Chair Comrie.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Mr.

         20  Henning you raised a lot of issues that we probably

         21  will have to have another Hearing on.  Council

         22  Member Koppell caught it and I think we all caught

         23  it.  It's interesting that the client frequency is

         24  gone down, while the costs have gone up.  And I

         25  think that's something we'll probably have to have
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          2  another Hearing on in the future, just to deal with

          3  all of that.  The implications of all of that

          4  clearly. I'm a little troubled, by that and I'd like

          5   --

          6                 MR. HENNING: I'm sorry, by what?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: The fact that the

          8  claim cost --

          9                 MR. HENNING: It could be accounted

         10  for medical inflation, that's why.  That's all that

         11  is.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, we'll have

         13  to take a deeper look into that with your help, I'm

         14  sure.

         15                 MR. HENNING: Sure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm just curious,

         17  while I have you here.  You only write approximately

         18  20 percent of all insurance premiums in this state?

         19                 MR. HENNING: That's correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Through your

         21  association?  Who does the other 80 percent?

         22                 MR. HENNING: Our companies are

         23  basically the stock companies, which are St. Paul

         24  Travelers, Hartford, Chubb.  There is another trade

         25  association which has All State, Geico, Progressive.
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          2  It's called the Property Casualty Insurance

          3  Association of America, PCI for short.  They write

          4  about 3 to 5 percent of auto premiums in the state.

          5  And then you have some independent companies, which

          6  don't belong to any trades, which would be State

          7  Farm.  I think State Farm has about 15 to 20 percent

          8  of the market.  AIG, Nationwide, so between the two

          9  trades and some of the bigger independents you get

         10  100 percent of the market.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  So your

         12  groups are mostly New York based groups or --

         13                 MR. HENNING: No, no a few of them

         14  have offices in New York but they are basically

         15  headquartered all over the country. But for my

         16  companies, New York is if not the biggest market,

         17  it's usually the biggest.  Some of them it might be

         18  the second biggest next to California.  We have the

         19  national companies, but even though we aren't

         20  headquartered here it's one of their top two

         21  priority states.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  And how do

         23  you become in AIA or the Property Casualty Trade.

         24  That's just up to the company?

         25                 MR. HENNING: Yes.  It's a Trade
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          2  Association, it's a membership, you know you pay

          3  your membership dues.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  So it's

          5  clearly up to the corporation whether they decide.

          6                 MR. HENNING: Exactly.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  I want to

          8  thank you for coming today and testifying.  And, I

          9  did read through your entire testimony while you

         10  were giving some background and I think that it is

         11  clear that you are supportive of 243- A, but you

         12  would like to see some other opportunities to

         13  continue to bring down any fraud in the no- fault

         14  insurance category and in insurance altogether.  So,

         15  hopefully we can also continue to have further

         16  discussions down the line.

         17                 Since there are no other questions

         18  then we have already had two members that voted and

         19  left.  We do have Council Member Koppell, which will

         20  take us over the quorum.  So I think we can take the

         21  rest of the vote now.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Proposing Intro. 243-

         23  A. Council Member Comrie

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.  I want

         25  to congratulate Council Member Yassky for following
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          2  up on the advice of his Borough President, Marty

          3  Markowitz and want to thank all of the people who

          4  worked on this bill over the last year to bring it

          5  to our Committee.  I'm glad that this is on the

          6  first bill that this Committee is voting on this

          7  year, which will help consumers in a major way.

          8  Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: With a vote of four in

         12  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

         13  abstentions the item is adopted.  Council Members

         14  please sign the Committee Report.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         16  Gennaro is on his way.  He should be here shortly.

         17  We want to hold the vote open so that he can vote,

         18  but I will close the meeting and thank all those who

         19  participated again.  I want to thank my Legislative

         20  Counsel Thomas Ferrugia, Brian Sogol, who just came

         21  on- board and jumped right in and Veronica McNeil

         22  and the Finance Staff for their participation in

         23  this as well.  And also to Mr. Johnson from Council

         24  Member Yassky's office who lost all his hair during

         25  the process of putting this bill together.
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          2                 With that, I'll call the meeting

          3  closed.  Thank you.

          4                 (The following written testimony was

          5  read into the record.)

          6

          7  PROPERTY CASUALTY INSURERS

          8  ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA

          9

         10                 The Property Casualty Insurers

         11  Association of America (PCI) appreciates the

         12  opportunity to comment on Intro. No. 243- A relating

         13  to reducing no- fault motor vehicle insurance fraud.

         14                 The PCI is an association

         15  representing over one thousand property/casualty

         16  insurance companies across the United States that

         17  insure over half the automobiles, over three out of

         18  ten homes, and almost one- third of the businesses

         19  in New York State.

         20                 New York State's no- fault fraud

         21  problem is among the worst in the nation, with no-

         22  fault fraud costs reaching $1 billion dollars per

         23  year when the problem was at its worst.  The

         24  epicenter of this problem is New York City and its

         25  environs, where no- fault fraud criminal operations
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          2  have become highly organized enterprises which serve

          3  to drive up auto insurance premiums in the downstate

          4  area to at or near the highest in the nation. This,

          5  however, is not only a financial issue.  It is also

          6  an issue of public safety, a point which is most

          7  strikingly evidenced by the 2003 death of Alice

          8  Ross, a 71 year- old grandmother, who was the victim

          9  of a staged accident.

         10                 Medical mills are key to these

         11  organized crime operations and PCI commends the

         12  Committee on Consumer Affairs for considering this

         13  legislation, which will help to close the doors on

         14  medical mills and dismantle the no- fault fraud

         15  organized crime enterprises.  While medical mills

         16  often may appear to be places where health care

         17  services are provided from the outside, they often

         18  provide little or no health care services and simply

         19  exist to fraudulently bill insurance companies.

         20                 Recent efforts of the new York State

         21  Insurance Department and insurers in fighting fraud

         22  have started to pay off and the no- fault costs

         23  attributable to fraud are starting to come down.

         24  Unfortunately however, success with regard to

         25  closing down medical mills has been limited.
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          2  Medical mills have proven to be extremely adaptable

          3  and resourceful and it has been difficult, under

          4  current law, to close these operations down for

          5  good.  Often times, when one medical mill is closed

          6  down, it shows up down the street under a different

          7  name.  This cannot be allowed to continue and this

          8  bill will provide the tools which are needed to

          9  permanently close the doors on medical mills and

         10  reduce no- fault fraud.

         11                 By requiring the reporting of

         12  information regarding the ownership interests,

         13  management and claims information by clinics that

         14  are treating predominantly no- fault patients, the

         15  investigation of these clinics to determine whether

         16  they are engaging in fraudulent activity will be

         17  facilitated.  The provisions requiring the reporting

         18  of ownership interests in a clinic will help to

         19  prevent the current practice whereby clinics are

         20  closed land then simply reorganize and reopen under

         21  a new name at a new location.

         22            Legislation was recently enacted on the

         23  state level to provide that doctors who engage in

         24  fraud may be decertified from receiving future

         25  payment under the no- fault system.  This bill would
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          2  complement that legislation by ensuring that a

          3  clinic which engages in fraud does not simply get

          4  another doctor after their doctor is decertified

          5  from receiving payment under no- fault. Rather, this

          6  legislation would ensure that the medical mill would

          7  be closed down as well when action is taken against

          8  the doctor.

          9                 PCI also supports the provisions of

         10  this legislation which would prohibit individuals

         11  from acting as runners and would prohibit no- fault

         12  clinics from employing or otherwise using runners.

         13  Runners are key players in the no- fault fraud crime

         14  rings.  They solicit individuals to participate in

         15  staged accidents and coordinate the receipt of, or

         16  billing for, fraudulent no- fault services.  With

         17  sufficient penalties in place against individuals

         18  who act as runners or employ runners, a key element

         19  of the no- fault fraud crime rings would be

         20  eliminated and no- fault fraud would be decreased.

         21                 One suggestion for a possible

         22  refinement to this legislation would be to provide

         23  that any civil penalties collected pursuant to the

         24  provisions of this legislation be applied for

         25  restitution where the violation is traceable to
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          2  specific claim payments made by an insurance

          3  company.  Ensuring that insurance companies receive

          4  reimbursement for any such payments would assist in

          5  further reducing no- fault fraud costs.

          6                 Accordingly, for the foregoing

          7  reasons, PCI commends the Committee for considering

          8  this meritorious legislation and we urge the

          9  Committee to act favorably with regard to this

         10  legislation.  PCI looks forward to working with the

         11  Committee and the New York City Council in efforts

         12  to reduce no- fault fraud and the costs associated

         13  therewith. Thank you for your consideration of these

         14  comments.

         15

         16

         17  WRITTEN TESTIMONY READ INTO THE RECORD:

         18  GARY HENNING

         19  ASSISTANT VICE PRESIDENT OF THE NORTHEAST REGION

         20  OF THE AMERICAN INSURANCE ASSOCIATION

         21

         22                 Good morning.  My name is Gary

         23  Henning, Assistant Vice President of the Northeast

         24  Region of the American Insurance Association (AIA).

         25  AIA is a national trade association of more than 400
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          2  property and casualty insurers that write

          3  approximately 20 percent of all automobile insurance

          4  premiums in New York State. AIA thanks the New York

          5  City Council for the opportunity to provide our

          6  views on Introduction 243- A.

          7                 First though, I would like to provide

          8  some background on no- fault automobile insurance

          9  and the issue of no fault fraud.  In New York State,

         10  there are three different types of automobile

         11  insurance coverage required by law: One, no- fault

         12  coverage, also known as personal injury protection

         13  (PIP); Two, liability coverage; and Three, uninsured

         14  motorist coverage.  As the topic of this Hearing is

         15  no- fault coverage, I will focus on this

         16  momentarily.  However, as background, I would like

         17  to discuss the other two required coverages briefly,

         18  so as to better lay out what no- fault does not

         19  cover.

         20                 Liability coverage protects an

         21  insured, as well as anyone driving the insured's car

         22  with the insured's permission, if a claim is made by

         23  a third- party, alleging the insured, or person

         24  driving with permission, was at fault in an

         25  automobile accident. A third- party suit for pain
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          2  and suffering can be brought only if the party

          3  bringing suit has sustained a serious injury, as

          4  defined in Article 51 of the Insurance Law, or has

          5  exhausted the limits of his or her no- fault

          6  benefits. Uninsured motorists coverage protects an

          7  insured in the event he or she, or the passengers in

          8  the insured's vehicle, are injured by the negligent

          9  actions of an uninsured vehicle or hit- and- run

         10  motorist.

         11                 The other required coverage, and the

         12  topic of this Hearing is no- fault insurance.  Each

         13  automobile insurance policy in New York State is

         14  required to provide, regardless of who is at fault,

         15  up to $50,000 in PIP benefits to the insured and

         16  those in the insured's vehicle, in case of an

         17  accident.  PIP benefits are primary to health

         18  insurance benefits.  PIP benefits do not pay for any

         19  damages to the automobile involved in the accident.

         20  The basic $50,000 of PIP benefits cover: Necessary

         21  medical and rehabilitation expenses; 80 percent of

         22  lost earnings, up to a maximum of $2 thousand per

         23  month for three years; and up to $25 a day for a

         24  maximum of one year from the date of the accident to

         25  cover other necessary expenses resulting from the
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          2  accident.  No- fault also pays, in addition to the

          3  $50,000 in benefits an additional $2 thousand death

          4  benefit.

          5                 No- fault fraud is particularly

          6  attractive for several reasons.  First, each person

          7  in an insured vehicle is eligible for $50,000 in

          8  benefits.  Second, the medical services are provided

          9  on a fee- for- service basis in a non- managed care

         10  setting. Third, while this is changing now, no-

         11  fault fraud has been a low priority for law

         12  enforcement until recently, making it a much less

         13  risky enterprise for criminals as opposed to some

         14  other crimes.

         15                 How might a typical no- fault scam

         16  work?  First, a person, known as a runner, will

         17  enlist several people to stage an accident with an

         18  unwitting victim.  The accident could be caused by

         19  the car which is staging the accident stopping short

         20  in traffic, or darting out into an intersection into

         21  oncoming traffic.  Once the accident occurs, the

         22  runner directs the people participating in the

         23  staged accident to clinics which are involved in the

         24  scheme.  The participants are all paid by the runner

         25  for their involvement.  The runner is paid by the
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          2  clinic owner doctors to whom he directs the

          3  automobile accident victims.  The clinic owner may

          4  or may not be a doctor.  The clinic then bills the

          5  insurance carriers for services that are not

          6  actually rendered.

          7                 This type of scheme can be very

          8  lucrative to all involved, especially when one keeps

          9  in mind that each victim in a single car crash is

         10  eligible for $50,000 in no- fault benefits. While

         11  not directly tied to no- fault benefits, the runners

         12  will also direct the victims to lawyers who build

         13  personal injury suits through either alleging a

         14  serious injury as defined in the Insurance Law, or

         15  the exhaustion of the $50,000 of medical benefits.

         16                 With insurance carriers having an

         17  obligation to pay claims promptly, it is difficult

         18  many times to detect fraudulent claims, especially

         19  when this type of crime involves large numbers of

         20  claims.  Each fraudulently billed service, in and of

         21  itself, is not necessarily very expensive.  A

         22  chiropractic visit, for example, may cost less than

         23  $100.  However, when all the fraudulent services are

         24  bundled together, this crime costs insurance

         25  carriers a great deal of money, costs which are
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          2  ultimately borne by the consumer.

          3                 Several factors have helped reduce

          4  the incidence of no- fault fraud in New York State

          5  and New York City.  First, the state insurance

          6  department adopted amendments to Regulation 68,

          7  amendments which went into effect in April 2002.

          8  Among the changes effected by this amended

          9  regulation are two that have been particularly

         10  beneficial in reducing no- fault fraud.  First, the

         11  timeframe in which an insured has to report an

         12  accident to the insurance company has been shortened

         13  from 90 days to 30 days; the timeframe in which a

         14  medical provider has to submit a claim to the

         15  insurance company has been reduced from 180 days to

         16  45 days.  The earlier initial notification of a

         17  claim allows carriers to detect patterns of

         18  fraudulent services more quickly and easily.

         19                 The shortened timeframe in which a

         20  medical provider has to bill the insurance carrier

         21  prevents medical service providers from bundling six

         22  month's worth of claims together and submitting them

         23  all at once to the insurance carrier.  This is

         24  important because the more claims submitted

         25  together, the easier it is to perpetrate no- fault

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  fraud because, as a general rule, insurance carriers

          3  must pay or deny a claim within 30 days of its

          4  receipt.  The reduced timeframes in Regulation 68

          5  allows carriers to better manage their claims

          6  handling processes and fraud investigations, thereby

          7  helping reduce the incidence of fraud.

          8                 Amendments to Insurance Department

          9  Regulation 83 have also proven helpful in the fight

         10  against no- fault fraud.  The regulation, amended in

         11  October 2004, establishes a fee schedule for health

         12  care services, as well as for durable medical

         13  equipment. The establishment of this fee schedule

         14  has prevented the unwarranted inflation of charges

         15  for goods and services that may or may not have been

         16  rendered.

         17                 Another factor that has helped reduce

         18  insurance fraud is the increased efforts on the part

         19  of state and local law enforcement to identify and

         20  prosecute this crime.  On the state level, the

         21  Insurance Department and the Attorney General's

         22  office have increased the allocation of resources

         23  dedicated to fighting fraud.  On the local level,

         24  many district attorneys have increased their

         25  investigation and prosecution of this crime.
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          2                 Finally, the insurance companies

          3  themselves have dedicated more resources to fighting

          4  fraud.  The company special investigative units

          5  (SIUs) have had great success in detecting

          6  fraudulent claim activity.  These SIUs work with the

          7  state and local law enforcement on fraud

          8  investigations.  This public/private coordination

          9  has helped bring about increased numbers of arrests

         10  and convictions for insurance fraud.

         11                 However, while much has been done to

         12  reduce fraud, thereby reducing costs and lowering

         13  premiums, more can be done. That is why AIA strongly

         14  supports Introduction 243- A.  Right now, insurance

         15  premiums in New York City can be several times

         16  higher than those for identical risks in other parts

         17  of the state.  For example, according to 2005 rate

         18  data, a 35-year-old male in Brooklyn, buying the

         19  minimum,-required insurance coverage, would pay

         20  three to over four times more than he would in

         21  Albany or Rochester.  The same person living in

         22  Manhattan would pay between two and three times more

         23  than his Albany and Rochester counterparts.  While

         24  everything in New York City is more expensive than

         25  in the rest of the state, fraud is still a
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          2  contributing factor to the higher premiums in New

          3  York City.

          4            I have attached two charts of claims data

          5  compiled recently by the Insurance Services Office

          6  (ISO), which is an organization that collects and

          7  analyzes data from information gathered from the

          8  insurance companies.  The first chart is claims data

          9  for New York City and New York State, including

         10  borough specific information.  Claim costs dollar

         11  amount of average no fault claim, have been

         12  increasing in both the City and the state. This

         13  could either be due to medical inflation, increased

         14  fraud or some combination of both.  However, the

         15  claim frequency no- fault claims per 100 insured

         16  vehicles statistic is revealing.  Claim frequency

         17  for both New York City and New York State has been

         18  steadily decreasing for the passed several years.

         19  While not shown on these charts, this trend

         20  continues until today.  This is clear evidence that

         21  all the fraud- fighting measures are having a

         22  positive effect.

         23                 What these statistics also point out,

         24  though, is that claim cost and claim frequency are

         25  almost twice as high for New York City as they are
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          2  for the rest of the state.  This strongly suggests

          3  that more anti- fraud efforts in New York City would

          4  have a beneficial effect on the automobile insurance

          5  market by taking costs out of the system here.

          6                 For the sake of comparison, I have

          7  attached charts of no- fault claim statistics for

          8  other cities and states where the states have a no-

          9  fault system that is most similar to New York's. The

         10  cities and the corresponding states are Miami,

         11  Florida, Detroit, Michigan and Minneapolis,

         12  Minnesota.  While different costs for medical

         13  services from city to city make absolute dollar

         14  comparisons of claims costs difficult, some relative

         15  comparisons are helpful.  Miami, which also has a

         16  no- fault fraud problem, has average claim costs

         17  roughly 40 percent higher than the rest of Florida.

         18  Detroit has average claim costs that are 35 percent

         19  higher than the rest of Michigan.  Minneapolis has

         20  average claim costs that are nearly identical to the

         21  rest of the state.  While these are different- sized

         22  cities, it is instructive to note that New York

         23  City's average claim costs are 75 percent higher

         24  than the rest of the state's for the time period

         25  charted.

                                                            79

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 In terms of claim frequency, a

          3  comparison of absolute numbers makes more sense, as

          4  we are looking at other cities with similar no-

          5  fault systems.  Miami, on average from 2001 2003,

          6  had an average annual claim frequency of 3.39 claims

          7  per 100 insured vehicles; the rest of Florida's

          8  average annual frequency was 1.70.  Detroit had an

          9  average annual claim frequency for that time period

         10  of 1.48; the remainder of Michigan had a frequency

         11  of 0.85.  Finally Minneapolis had a claim frequency

         12  of 1.80, while the rest of Minnesota had a frequency

         13  of 1.26.  New York City, in its best statistical

         14  year that is charted, 2003, has a claim frequency of

         15  2.95, while the rest of New York State has a

         16  frequency of 1.48.  So, New York City's claim

         17  frequency was slightly less than Miami's claim

         18  frequencies but higher than Detroit's or

         19  Minneapolis'.  New York City's and Miami's claim

         20  frequencies are similar proportions greater than the

         21  rest of their states' frequencies, while Detroit and

         22  Minneapolis have claim frequencies more in line with

         23  the rest of their states' frequencies.

         24                 What do all these statistics suggest?

         25    First, the claim costs in New York City relative
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          2  to the rest of the state are much higher than those

          3  of the other cities in comparison to their states.

          4  This suggests that there are factors inflating claim

          5  costs in New York City higher than they ought to be.

          6    Second, while claim frequency data for New York

          7  City is comparable to Miami, a city with its own no-

          8  fault fraud problems, New York City's frequency is

          9  higher than the other cities' examined here.

         10                 Most importantly, New York City's

         11  claim frequency is twice that of the rest of New

         12  York State.  The decreasing annual claim frequency

         13  for New York City also suggests that the fraud

         14  fighting measures have been working here.  So while

         15  the data does not prove New York City has a no-

         16  fault fraud problem still it strongly suggests this

         17  conclusion.

         18                 There is also anecdotal evidence of

         19  the prevalence on no- fault fraud in New York City.

         20  I have attached various articles from the quarterly

         21  periodical Fraud Focus, a publication of the

         22  Coalition Against Insurance Fraud, a national

         23  organization of insurance companies and consumer

         24  groups dedicated to fighting insurance fraud.  The

         25  stories detail how no- fault scams are organized
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          2  criminal enterprises.  One story tells of a clinic

          3  that was run, until it was shut down by law

          4  enforcement officials, by an alleged member of the

          5  Bonanno crime family.

          6                 Not included in the attached stories,

          7  but one story even more powerful, is the story of

          8  Alice Ross.  In March of 2003, Mrs. Ross, a 71-

          9  year- old grandmother and resident of Queens, was

         10  the unwitting victim of a staged accident.  Mrs.

         11  Ross' automobile was hit and sent careening off the

         12  road into a tree, killing Ross almost instantly.

         13  There have also been stories in the media of

         14  gunfight turf wars in Brooklyn, as rival criminal

         15  enterprises fight over lucrative territory.

         16                 Therefore, both statistical and

         17  anecdotal evidence strongly suggest that while the

         18  situation is improving, no- fault fraud is still a

         19  factor in automobile insurance rates in new York

         20  City.  Introduction 243- A would provide both law

         21  enforcement and insurance carriers additional tools

         22  with which to fight no- fault fraud.

         23                 By requiring clinics at which no-

         24  fault billings constitute more than 50 percent of

         25  total billings to file reports with the Department
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          2  of Consumer Affairs, the City will have a record of

          3  where possible abuses are occurring.  The state

          4  Insurance Department, law enforcement and the SIUs

          5  of the insurance carriers will have access to

          6  valuable information that will help in the fight

          7  against no- fault insurance fraud.  While a good

          8  portion of fraud investigation is good, old-

          9  fashioned detective work, law enforcement and the

         10  companies now also use sophisticated computer

         11  programs to flag possibly fraudulent claims.  Having

         12  another government agency collect claims data will

         13  only benefit both types of anti- fraud efforts.  The

         14  reporting requirement will also have a deterrent

         15  effect on those contemplating setting up medical

         16  clinics for the purpose of defrauding no- fault

         17  insurance carriers.

         18                 Finally, Introduction 243- A provides

         19  for increased criminal and civil penalties for both

         20  acting as a runner and in regard to owners of

         21  medical clinics, soliciting the services of a

         22  runner.  The civil penalty for acting as a runner or

         23  employing a runner is a fine of not less than $10

         24  thousand.  A fine of this amount should act as a

         25  deterrent to the crime of no- fault automobile
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          2  insurance fraud.

          3                 The American Insurance Association

          4  applauds the City Council's interest in this

          5  important topic.  Introduction 243- A will provide

          6  valuable tools in the fight against no- fault

          7  insurance fraud.  This, in turn, will continue the

          8  trend of removing costs from the system and

          9  ultimately reducing automobile insurance premiums

         10  for New Yorkers.  AIA urges the adoption of

         11  Introduction 243- A

         12                 Thank you, and I welcome this

         13  opportunity to answer any questions the Council

         14  Members might have.

         15                 (Hearing adjourned 11:34 a.m.)
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